
 

 

AGENDA  

MIDDLESEX-LONDON BOARD OF HEALTH  

Finance and Facilities Committee 
 

50 King St., Room 3A, London 

Thursday, February 7, 2019     9:00 a.m. 

 

 

1. ELECTION OF CHAIR, FINANCE AND FACILITIES COMMITTEE 

 

2. DISCLOSURE OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – November 1, 2018 

 

5. NEW BUSINESS  

 

5.1 Finance and Facilities Committee – Terms of Reference (Report No. 001-19FFC) 

5.2 Finance and Facilities Committee – 2019 Reporting Calendar (Report No. 002-19FFC) 

5.3 Health Unit General Insurance Policy Renewal (Report No. 003-19FFC) 

5.4 Technology & Infrastructure Reserve Funds (Report No. 004-19FFC) 

5.5 Information Technology Status Report – Q1 2019 (Report No. 005-19FFC) 

 

6. OTHER BUSINESS 

 

Next meeting Thursday, February 14, 2019 at 9:00 a.m. Middlesex County Boardroom 
 

7. CONFIDENTIAL 

 

The Finance and Facilities Committee will move in-camera to approve confidential minutes from 

its November 1, 2018 meeting. 
 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 



PUBLIC MINUTES 

FINANCE & FACILITIES COMMITTEE 

50 King Street, London 

Middlesex-London Health Unit 

Thursday, November 1, 2018, 9:00 a.m. 

 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT:     Ms. Trish Fulton (Chair) 

    Mr. Jesse Helmer 

Ms. Tino Kasi 

    Mr. Marcel Meyer 

    Ms. Joanne Vanderheyden 

 

REGRETS:   Dr. Christopher Mackie, Secretary-Treasurer 

 

OTHERS PRESENT:  Mr. Michael Clarke, Board of Health 

  Ms. Maureen Cassidy, Board of Health 

  Ms. Laura Di Cesare, Director, Healthy Organization 

   Ms. Lynn Guy, Executive Assistant (Recorder) 

   Dr. Alexander Summers, Associate Medical Officer of Health 

   Mr. Brian Glasspoole, Manager, Finance 

   Mr. Joe Belancic, Manager, Procurement and Operations 

   Mr. Stephen Turner, Director, Environmental Health and Infectious 

Diseases 

   Ms. Maureen Rowlands, Director, Healthy Living 

   Ms. Heather Lokko, Director, Healthy Start 

   Ms. Brooke Clark, PHN 

   

Chair Fulton called the meeting to order at 9:03 a.m. 

 

DISCLOSURES OF CONFLICT(S) OF INTEREST 

 

Chair Fulton inquired if there were any disclosures of conflicts of interest. None were declared. 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

Chair Fulton noted that item 4.7 would be moved to earlier on the agenda, immediately following 4.1, to 

accommodate staff schedules. She also advised that at approximately 9:20 a.m., the Committee would take 

a short recess to allow attendees to attend the Middlesex-London Health Unit and Regional HIV/AIDS 

Connection announcement at 9:30 a.m. in the Middlesex County Building. 

 

It was moved by Ms. Vanderheyden, seconded by Mr. Meyer, that the amended AGENDA for the 

November 1, 2018 Finance & Facilities Committee meeting be approved. 

Carried 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

It was moved by Ms. Vanderheyden, seconded by Ms. Kasi, that the MINUTES of the September 6, 2018 

Finance & Facilities Committee meeting be approved. 

Carried 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

4.1 Q3 Financial Update and Factual Certificate (Report No. 038-18FFC) 

Mr. Glasspoole introduced the report and provided additional context when necessary.  

 

DRAFT

https://www.healthunit.com/november-1-2018-ffc-agenda
https://www.healthunit.com/september-6-2018-ffc-meeting-minutes
https://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2018-11-01-report-038-18-ffc.pdf


Public Session                                                            - 2 -                                         2018 November 1 

Finance & Facilities Committee Minutes 

 

Discussion ensued on the following items: 

• Limited revenue expected this year from oral health adult treatment. 

• The technology budget, relating to a report reviewed by the FFC at its May 3 meeting. 

 

It was moved by Ms. Kasi, seconded by Mr. Helmer, that the Finance & Facilities Committee recommend 

that the Board of Health receive Report No. 038-18FFC re: “Q3 Financial Update and Factual 

Certificate” for information. 

Carried 

 

It was moved by Ms. Kasi, seconded by Ms. Vanderheyden, that the Finance & Facilities Committee 

recommend that the Board of Health approve the allocation of surplus to mitigate costs related to 

Relocation Project expenses and the Electronic Client Records project. 

Carried 

4.2 Cyber Insurance (Report No. 039-18FFC)  

Discussion ensued on the following items: 

• Why the province isn’t paying for all health units to be covered, and whether alPHa should be involved.  

• Details on how the other two quotes compared to the one from Holman Insurance Brokers Ltd. 

 

It was moved by Mr. Helmer, seconded by Ms. Vanderheyden, that the Finance & Facilities Committee 

receive Report No. 039-18FFC re: “Cyber Insurance” for information. 

Carried 

 

4.3 Location Project – Source of Financing (Report No. 040-18FFC) 

Mr. Glasspoole noted that this was a fairly extensive process and highlighted some key points of the report. 

Ms. Di Cesare advised that the Province has been in contact and there is a meeting booked for next week. 

 

Discussion ensued on the following items: 

• Debt financing in general 

• Clarification of the relationship between the Relocation Advisory Committee and the Finance & Facilities 

Committee. 

 

It was moved by Mr. Meyer, seconded by Mr. Helmer, that the Finance & Facilities Committee: 

1) Receive Report No. 040-18FFC re: “Location Project – Source of Financing” for information; and 

2) Recommend that the Board of Health approve the selection of the City of London as the lender for 

office fit-up. 

Carried 

 

4.4 Enterprise Resource Planning – Financial System Update (Report No. 041-18FFC) 
 

There was discussion about why the first round of requests for proposal (RFP) in 2017 yielded no bids. 

Mr. Belancic advised that it may have been the RFP’s wording and/or the multiple requirements 

stipulated therein. 

 

It was moved by Mr. Helmer, seconded by Mr. Meyer, that the Finance & Facilities Committee receive 

Report No. 041-18FFC re: “Enterprise Resource Planning – Financial System Update” for information. 

Carried 

  

4.5 Mobile Device Services Contract Extension (Report No. 042-18FFC) 

There was a brief discussion about why this report is being called an “extension” when it appears to be a 

new contract. Mr. Belancic and Ms. Di Cesare provided additional context and noted that there will be 

cost savings, over the contract’s two years, of approximately $31,000. 

 

DRAFT

https://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2018-11-01-report-039-18-ffc.pdf
https://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2018-11-01-report-040-18-ffc.pdf
https://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2018-11-01-report-041-18-ffc.pdf
https://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2018-11-01-report-042-18-ffc.pdf


Public Session                                                            - 3 -                                         2018 November 1 

Finance & Facilities Committee Minutes 

 

It was moved by Mr. Helmer, seconded by Mr. Meyer, that the Finance & Facilities Committee receive 

Report No. 042-18FFC re: “Mobile Device Services Contract Extension” for information. 

Carried 

4.6 Middlesex-London Health Unit Be Well Program Update (Report No. 043-18FFC) 

It was moved by Mr. Meyer, seconded by Mr. Helmer, that the Finance & Facilities Committee receive 

Report No. 043-18FFC re: “Middlesex-London Health Unit Be Well Program Update” for information. 

Carried 

 

4.7 Proposed Resource Reallocation for the 2019 Budget (Report No. 044-18FFC) 

Chair Fulton opened the floor to discussion, beginning with the subject of disinvestments. 

 

Discussion ensued on the following disinvestment proposals: 

• 1-001 reduction of staff for the Sexual Health Clinic. Mr. Turner assured the Committee that there should 

be no disruption to client services with the closure of the drop-in clinic. There will be a change in clinic 

hours, which will be communicated to clients. 

• 1-004 Public Health Inspection Work. Mr. Turner noted that efficiencies have been found in the 

recommendations of the recent PHI review. 

• Scoring was discussed briefly, including how the scores have changed since PBMA was introduced. 

 

At 9:20 a.m., Chair Fulton asked for a motion to recess for the purpose of attending the MLHU/RHAC 

announcement. It was so moved by Mr. Meyer, seconded by Mr. Helmer. 

 Carried 

 

At 9:57 a.m., Chair Fulton welcomed everyone back and asked for a motion to resume the meeting. It was 

so moved by Ms. Vanderheyden, seconded by Mr. Meyer. At this time, Ms. Cassidy joined the meeting and 

Chair Fulton provided her with an update on what had been covered on the agenda so far. Ms. Kasi did not 

return when the meeting reconvened.  

 

Discussion ensued on the Electronic Client Records Investment Proposal. Mr. Turner noted that there is 

potential for bringing together public health, primary care, and acute care to allow for exchange of 

information across the healthcare system, but there are some logistical hurdles. The ECR that is noted here 

has the potential to allow health units to share data with each other. Mr. Clarke advised that Health 

Innovation funds are available, and that he will send the contact details to Mr. Turner for further 

exploration. 

 

Discussion ensued on the following one-time investment proposals:  

• 1-0024 Procurement Coordinator. Ms. Di Cesare provided additional details, noting that this position 

could be funded through savings and efficiencies in procurement process results, and that as such the 

recruitment process has begun. 

 

• 1-0028 Vision Screening Coordinator. Ms. Rowlands advised that partnerships have been looked at and 

the Ivey Institute has offered free training. The Ministry has offered one-time funding for the purchase of 

equipment. 

 

• 1-0035 Contract Epidemiologist. Dr. Summers noted that this extension is for the purpose of completing 

the Community Health Status Report. He mentioned that at this time he is not sure if a further extension 

will be required. 

 

It was moved by Mr. Helmer, seconded by Ms. Kasi, that the Finance & Facilities Committee approve 

Appendix A, PBMA Disinvestments totalling $390,727. 

Carried 

DRAFT

https://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2018-11-01-report-043-18.pdf
https://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2018-11-01-report-044-18-ffc.pdf
http://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2018-11-01-report-044-18-ffc-appendix-a.pdf


Public Session                                                            - 4 -                                         2018 November 1 

Finance & Facilities Committee Minutes 

 

It was moved by Mr. Helmer, seconded by Mr. Meyer, that the Finance & Facilities Committee approve 

Appendix B, PBMA Investments totalling $397,526. 

Carried 

 

It was moved by Ms. Vanderheyden, seconded by Mr. Helmer, that the Finance & Facilities Committee 

approve Appendix C, PBMA One-Time Proposals totalling $140,784. 

Carried 

 

It was moved by Mr. Meyer, seconded by Mr. Helmer, that the Finance & Facilities Committee approve 

Appendix D, outlining proposals not currently recommended for inclusion totalling $631,732. 

Carried 

 

4.8 Great-West Life Benefits Renewal Update (Report No. 045-18FFC) 

It was moved by Mr. Helmer, seconded by Mr. Meyer, that the Finance & Facilities Committee review 

and recommend that the Board of Health extend the current renewal period of the group insurance rates 

administered by Great-West Life as described in Report No. 045-18FFC re: “Great-West Life Benefits – 

Renewal Update.” 

Carried 

 

4.9 Enterprise Resource Planning – Human Capital Management Update (Report No. 046-18FFC) 

Chair Fulton asked for Committee members to consider their questions vis a vis the potential need to go in 

camera. 

 

Mr. Belancic advised that four bids have been received, which will be reviewed as soon as possible. In 

response to a question, Mr. Belancic noted that the contract would be for a minimum of five years and a 

maximum of ten, with an opt-out clause. 

 

At 10:41 a.m., it was moved by Mr. Helmer, seconded by Mr. Meyer, that the Finance & Facilities move 

in-camera to discuss matters regarding identifiable individuals. 

Carried 

 

At 10:50 a.m., it was moved by Mr. Helmer, seconded by Mr. Meyer, that the Finance & Facilities return 

to public session. 

Carried 

 

It was moved by Mr. Helmer, seconded by Mr. Meyer, that the Finance & Facilities Committee: 

1. Receive Report No. 046-18FFC re: “Enterprise Resource Planning – Update” for information; 

2. Recommend that the Board of Health approve the outsourcing of payroll services; and 

3. Recommend that the Board of Health approve the implementation of a comprehensive Human 

Resource Capital Management System within the financial parameters identified herein. 

Carried 

 

OTHER BUSINESS 

 

Next meeting: December 6, 2018. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

At 10:53 a.m., it was moved by Mr. Meyer, seconded by Mr. Helmer, that the meeting be adjourned. 

Carried 

 

At 10:53 a.m., Chair Fulton adjourned the meeting. 

DRAFT

http://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2018-11-01-report-044-18-ffc-appendix-b.pdf
http://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2018-11-01-report-044-18-ffc-appendix-c.pdf
http://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2018-11-01-report-044-18-ffc-appendix-d.pdf
https://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2018-11-01-report-045-18-ffc.pdf
https://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2018-11-01-report-046-18-ffc.pdf


Public Session                                                            - 5 -                                         2018 November 1 

Finance & Facilities Committee Minutes 

 

 

 

_________________________________   ______________________________ 

TRISH FULTON      LAURA DI CESARE 

Chair  Director, Healthy Organization 
 

 

 

 

 

DRAFT



                MIDDLESEX-LONDON HEALTH UNIT 

 

                             REPORT NO. 001-19FFC 

 

 

TO:  Chair and Members of the Finance & Facilities Committee 

 

FROM: Christopher Mackie, Medical Officer of Health/CEO 

 

DATE:  2019 February 7 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

 
FINANCE & FACILITIES COMMITTEE – TERMS OF REFERENCE 

 

Recommendation 
 

It is recommended that the Finance & Facilities Committee review and approve Report No. 001-

19FFC re: “Finance & Facilities Committee – Terms of Reference.” 

 

 

Key Points  

 The Terms of Reference for the Finance & Facilities Committee is to be reviewed biennially at 

minimum. 

 The last review was conducted in January 2016. 

 No material changes are proposed to the Terms of Reference except for a change in title for staff 

members supporting the Committee. 

 
Background 
 

The Finance & Facilities Committee acts in an advisory and monitoring role to ensure effective 

administration and risk management in matters related to the organization’s finances and facilities. It is 

incumbent upon the Committee to review its Terms of Reference biennially at minimum to ensure that all 

relevant components (purpose, reporting relationship, membership, appointment of chair, term of office, 

duties, frequency of meetings, agendas and minutes, by-laws and review) remain relevant to the needs of 

the organization. The Terms of Reference are attached as Appendix A. 

 

The Terms of Reference address the following aspects of the Committee: 

 Importance of appropriate mix of skills and expertise among board and committee members; 

 Attendance minimums; 

 Description of roles and responsibilities for the committee chair; 

 Election of officers and committee members to ensure fair representation from all jurisdictions 

supported by the Health Unit; 

 Rotation of committee chairs every two years to ensure continuity of leadership; and 

 Comprehensive description of the Committee’s role and responsibilities in ensuring effective 

administration and risk management in matters related to the organization’s finances and facilities. 

  

http://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2019-02-07-report-001-19-ffc-appendix-a.pdf


2019 February 7 -  2  - Report No. 001-19FFC 

 

  

Changes to the Middlesex-London Health Unit Organizational Structure  
 

Minor amendments were made to reflect the change in staff titles for those supporting the committee. A 

change was required to amend the Director, Corporate Services and Associate Director of Finance to 

Director, Healthy Organization and Manager, Finance.  

  

This report was prepared by the Finance Team, Healthy Organization Division. 

 

 

 
Christopher Mackie, MD, MHSc, CCFP, FRCPC 

Medical Officer of Health/CEO 

 

 



Appendix A – Report No. 001-FFC 

 

 
 FINANCE & FACILITIES COMMITTEE  

 
PURPOSE  
The committee serves to provide an advisory and monitoring role. The committee’s role is to 
assist and advise the Board of Health, the Medical Officer of Health /Chief Executive Officer 
(MOH/CEO), and the Director, Healthy Organization in the administration and risk management 
of matters related to the finances and facilities of the organization.  
 
REPORTING RELATIONSHIP  
The Finance & Facilities Committee is a committee reporting to the Board of Health of the 
Middlesex-London Health Unit. The Chair of the Finance & Facilities Committee, with the 
assistance of the Director, Healthy Organization and the MOH/CEO, will make reports to the 
Board of Health as a whole following each of the meetings of the Finance & Facilities 
Committee.  
 
MEMBERSHIP  
The membership of the Committee will consist of a total of five (5) voting members. The 
members will include the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Board of Health and in total, the 
membership will contain at least one Middlesex County Board Member, one City of London 
Board Member and two provincial Board Members.  
 
The Secretary-Treasurer will be an ex-officio member. 
 
Staff support: - Director, Healthy Organization, Manager, Finance, Executive Assistant to the 
Board of Health  
 
Other Board of Health members are invited to attend the Finance & Facilities Committee but are 
not able to vote.  
 
CHAIR  
The Committee will elect a Chair at the first meeting of the year to serve at least one year, and 
optimally more than one year. 
 
TERM OF OFFICE  
At the first Board of Health meeting of the year the Board will review the committee 
membership. At this time, if any new appointments are required, the position(s) will be filled by 
majority vote. The appointment will be for at least one year, and where possible, staggered 
terms will be maintained to ensure a balance of new and continuing members. A member may 
serve on the committee as long as he or she remains a Board of Health member.  
 

DUTIES  
The Committee will seek the assistance of and consult with the MOH/CEO and the Director, 
Healthy Organization for the purposes of making recommendations to the Board of Health on 
the following matters:  
 
1. Reviewing detailed financial statements and analyses.  



Appendix A – Report No. 001-FFC 

2. Reviewing the annual cost-shared and 100% funded program budgets, for the purposes of 
governing the finances of the Health Unit.  

3. Reviewing the annual financial statements and auditor’s report for approval by the Board.  

4. Reviewing annually the types and amounts of insurance carried by the Health Unit.  

5. Reviewing periodically administrative policies relating to the financial management of the 
organization, including but not limited to, procurement, investments, and signing authority.  

6. Monitoring the Health Unit’s physical assets and facilities.  

7. Reviewing annually all service level agreements.  

8. Reviewing all funding agreements.  
 
FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS  
The Committee will meet monthly between Board of Health meetings and also at the call of the 
chair. If a meeting is deemed not to be required, it shall be cancelled by the Chair of the 
Committee. 
 
AGENDA & MINUTES  
1. The Chair of the Committee, with input from the Director, Healthy Organization and the 
Medical Officer of Health & Chief Executive Officer (MOH/CEO), will prepare agendas for 
regular meetings of the committee.  

2. Additional items may be added at the meeting if necessary.  

3. The recorder is the Executive Assistant to the Board of Health.  

4. Agenda & minutes will be made available at least 5 days prior to meetings.  

5. Agenda & meeting minutes are provided to all Board of Health members.  
 
BYLAWS:  
As per Section 19.1 of Board of Health By-Law No. 3, the rules governing the proceedings of 
the Board shall be observed in the Committees insofar as applicable. This will include rules 
related to conducting of meetings; decision making; quorum and self-evaluation. 
 
REVIEW  
The terms of reference will be reviewed every 2 (two) years.  
 
Implementation Date: February 7, 2019 



                MIDDLESEX-LONDON HEALTH UNIT 

 

                                    REPORT NO. 002-19FFC 

 

 

TO:  Chair and Members of the Finance & Facilities Committee 

 

FROM: Christopher Mackie, Medical Officer of Health/CEO 

 

DATE:  2019 February 7 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

FINANCE & FACILITIES COMMITTEE – 2019 REPORTING CALENDAR 
 
Recommendation 

 
It is recommended that the Finance & Facilities Committee approve Report No. 002-19FFC re: “Finance 

& Facilities Committee – 2019 Reporting Calendar.” 

 

  

Key Points  

 The 2019 Finance & Facilities Committee (FFC) Reporting Calendar provides a framework for activities 

anticipated to be undertaken in the current year. 

 The Committee’s duties and responsibilities are articulated in its Terms of Reference, the Health 

Protection and Promotion Act, the Ontario Public Health Organizational Standards, and other applicable 

legislation. 

 
Background 
 
The Finance & Facilities Committee serves the Board of Health in an advisory and monitoring role in 

relation to the administration and risk management of matters concerning the organization’s finances and 

facilities. In this role, it is important that Committee members are aware of the annual reporting requirements 

and other Committee responsibilities. 

 

The FFC Reporting Calendar provides a prudent and effective means of assessing reporting requirements, 

ensuring compliance with relevant statutes, and initiating a proactive approach to Board of Health 

accountability and performance. 

 

Finance & Facilities Committee Reporting Calendar 
 
The FFC Reporting Calendar is an account of the planned activities required of the Committee. The 

Reporting Calendar is updated annually to include additional accountabilities identified by FFC members 

and staff. 

 

A draft Reporting Calendar with proposed meeting dates, attached as Appendix A, is submitted for the 

Committee’s approval. 

 

This report was prepared by the Finance Team, Healthy Organization Division. 

 

 

 
Christopher Mackie, MD, MHSc, CCFP, FRCPC 

Medical Officer of Health/CEO 

 

  

http://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2019-02-07-report-002-19-ffc-appendix-a.pdf


Appendix A to Report No. 002-19FFC 

 

Finance & Facilities Committee  

2019 Reporting Calendar 

Q1 (Jan 1 to Mar 31) 

 

 2018 Q4 Financial and Factual Certificate 

Update  

 Review and Approve Annual Reporting 

Calendar 

 Review and Recommend 2019 Board of 

Health Budget 

 Public Sector Salary Disclosure 

 Physical Assets and Facilities Update  

 Review 2018 BOH remuneration 

 2018 Visa and Accounts Payable Payments 

 Financial Controls Checklist 

Q2 (Apr 1 to Jun 30) 

 

 Q1 Financial and Factual Certificate Update  

 Review and Recommend - Audited 2018 

Financial Statements for MLHU 

 Recommend Budget Parameters & Planning 

Assumptions for 2019 

 Review and Recommend 2019 Board of 

Health Remuneration 

 Review Funding & Service Level Agreements  

 Physical Assets and Facilities Update  

 

 

 

Q3 (Jul 1 to Sep 30) 

 

 Q2 Financial and Factual Certificate Update  

 Review and Recommend – Audited Financial 

Statements for April 1 to March 31 Programs 

 Review and Recommend Program Budgeting 

Marginal Analysis (PBMA) Process, Criteria 

and Weighting 

 Physical Assets and Facilities Update  

 Review Funding & Service Level Agreements 

 

 

Q4 – (Oct 1 to Dec 31) 
 

 Q3 Financial and Factual Certificate Update  

 Review and Recommend PBMA Proposed 

Resource Reallocation  

 Review Insurance Policies 

 Initiate Terms of Reference Review every 

second year (biennially) 

 Physical Assets and Facilities Update  

 Review Funding & Service Level Agreements 

 

 

The items on the reporting calendar are organized around the requirements to uphold public 

accountability over the use of resources, to manage the budget process efficiently, to communicate and 

report on the status of the budget, monitoring of facilities, risk management and administration and to 

align the budget to the strategic priorities of the Board of Health.  

Proposed 2018 FFC Meeting Dates 

Thursday February 7 9:00 a.m. – 1:00 p.m. 

Thursday February 14 9:00 a.m. – 1:00 p.m. 

Thursday March 7 9:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. 

Thursday April 4 9:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. 

Thursday May 2 9:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. 

Thursday June 6 9:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. 

Thursday July 4 9:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. 

Thursday August 1 (if required) 9:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. 

Thursday September 5 9:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. 

Thursday October 3 9:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. 

Thursday November 7 9:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. 

Thursday December 5 9:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. 



Appendix A to Report No. 002-19FFC 

 

Accountability 

Audited Financial Statements Review 

The preparation of the financial statements is the responsibility of the Health Unit’s management and is 

prepared in compliance with legislation and in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting 

standards. The Finance & Facilities Committee meets with management and the external auditors to 

review the financial statements and discuss any significant financial reporting or internal control matters 

prior to their approval of the financial statements.  This is typically done in June each year. 

In addition, each September it is a requirement of the Board of Health to provide audited financial reports 

to various funding agencies for programs that are funded from April 1st – March 31st each year. The 

purpose of this audited report is to provide the agencies with assurance that the funds were expended for 

the intended purpose and for their annual settlement process. 

Board of Health Remuneration 

Section 49 of the Health Protection & Promotion Act (HPPA) speaks to the composition, term, and 

remuneration of Board of Health members. Subsections (4), (5), (6), & (11) relate specifically to 

remuneration and expenses. This is to be reviewed by the Finance & Facilities Committee who makes 

recommendations to the Board of Health each year. 

Public Sector Salary Disclosure 

The Public Sector Salary Disclosure Act, 1996 makes Ontario's public sector more open and accountable 

to taxpayers. The act requires organizations that receive public funding from the Province of Ontario to 

disclose annually the names, positions, salaries and total taxable benefits of employees paid $100,000 or 

more in a calendar year. 

The main requirement for organizations covered by the act is to make their disclosure or if applicable to 

make their statement of no employee salaries to disclose available to the public by March 31st each year. 

Organizations covered by the act are also required to send their disclosure or statement to their funding 

ministry or ministries by the fifth business day of March. 

Funding & Service Level Agreements 

The Middlesex-London Health Unit receives grant funding, both one-time and ongoing from a variety of 

different sources. It is incumbent upon the Finance & Facilities Committee to annually, or as deemed 

necessary, review all service level and funding agreements.  

Budget Process  

Board of Health Budget Cycle 

The Board of Health budget cycle consists of a defined set of tools and key deliverable dates that the 

management of the Middlesex-London Health Unit are accountable to meet. The budget cycle intends to 

align planning processes with resource allocation and facilitate meeting the needs of the programs and 

services.  

  



Appendix A to Report No. 002-19FFC 

 

Budget Parameters & Planning Assumptions 

Developing high level planning parameters is an integral part of any budget process. They help guide and 

inform planning and resource allocation decisions. Ideally the parameters should be linked to the 

organization’s strategic direction, key budget planning assumptions and take into consideration municipal 

and provincial outlooks. 

Strategic and financial targets can also be considered during the Budget Parameters & Planning 

Assumptions deliberations at the Finance & Facilities Committee. 

While the Municipal funders can set targets for the Board, the final decision regarding budget 

requirements rests with the Board of Health. It is therefore essential that the Board of Health determine its 

approach to the development of the budget and provide the Municipalities of intended changes to the 

budget.  

Reserve and Reserve Funds  

The Board of Health maintains the following Reserve and Reserve Funds: Funding Stabilization Reserve, 

Dental Treatment Reserve Fund, Sick Leave Reserve Fund, Environmental Reserve – Septic Tank 

Inspections, Technology & Infrastructure Reserve Fund, and Employment Cost Reserve Fund.  

Planned contributions and drawdowns to the reserves or reserve funds will be included in the annual 

operating budget approved by the Board of Health. Any unplanned drawdowns will be approved by 

resolution of the Board of Health. Each year a report is provided to the obligated municipalities outlining 

the transactions of the reserve and reserve funds. 

Program Budgeting Marginal Analysis  

Program Budgeting Marginal Analysis (PBMA) is a criteria-based budgeting process that facilitates 

reallocation of resources based on maximizing service. This is done through the transparent application of 

pre-defined criteria and decision-making processes to prioritize where proposed funding investments and 

disinvestments are made. 

Board of Health Budget  

The Board of Health Budget is presented to the Finance & Facilities Committee through the use of 

Annual Service Plan as mandated by the MOHLTC and supplemented with program detail which 

integrates: (A) A summary of each program undertaken by the Health Unit funded from all sources (B) 

Program mandate and relevant legislation including Public Health Standards, (C) Program management, 

interventions / components designed to deliver the program, (D) Key partners and stakeholders  (E) Key 

highlights, initiatives planned, (F) Program challenges and risks (G) Staffing costs, expenditures and 

funding sources 

  



Appendix A to Report No. 002-19FFC 

 

Communications 

Quarterly Financial Updates  

Health Unit staff provide financial analysis for each quarter and report the actual and projected budget 

variance as well as any budget adjustments, or noteworthy items that that have arisen since the previous 

financial update that could impact the Middlesex-London Health Unit budget.  

Visa & Accounts Payable Updates 

In accordance with Section 5.17 of the Procurement Policy, the Manager, Finance is to report annually the 

suppliers who have invoiced a cumulative total value of $100,000 or more in a calendar year. 

The Finance & Facilities Committee also requested to report annually a summary of purchases made with 

corporate purchase cards. 

Facilities, Risk Management & Administration 

Factual Certificate  

Health Unit Management completes a factual certificate to increase oversight in key areas of financial and 

risk management. The certificate process ensures that the Committee has done its due diligence. The 

certificate is reviewed on a quarterly basis alongside financial updates.  

Financial Controls Checklist 

Financial controls support the integrity of the Board of Health’s financial statements, support the 

safeguarding of assets, and assist with the prevention and/or detection of significant errors, including 

fraud.  The financial controls checklist outlines all critical controls in place and effectively administered 

by management to provide assurance to the Committee that the Board of Health is complying with 

Schedule E of the Public Health Funding Accountability Agreement: Boards of Health Financial 

Controls.  

Physical Asset and Facilities Monitoring 

The Finance & Facilities Committee is responsible for monitoring the Middlesex-London Health Unit’s 

physical assets and facilities. This entails a review of space needs, property leases and acquisitions.  

Policy Development & Review 

Bylaws and policies represent the general principles that set the direction, limitations and accountability 

frameworks for the Middlesex-London Health Unit. The Finance & Facilities Committee is responsible 

for reviewing the governance and administration policies relating to the financial management of the 

organization, including but not limited to, procurement, investments, and signing authority.  

These requirements are outlined by the Ontario Public Health Organizational Standards and should be 

reviewed by the Finance & Facilities Committee at least biannually.  

The Senior Leadership Team may also make recommendations for additional finance bylaws, policies or 

revisions should the need arise.  



Appendix A to Report No. 002-19FFC 

 

Insurance Coverage Review 

The Finance & Facilities Committee is responsible for an annual review of the types and amounts of 

insurance carried by the Health Unit. Staff are responsible for preparing a review of the insurance needs 

of the Health Unit and providing recommendation to the Finance & Facilities Committee in regards to the 

level and types of insurance the Middlesex-London Health Unit should purchase. 

Other 

Benefits Provider Review  

Group insurance for the Middlesex-London Health Unit is reviewed at the completion of a service 

agreement. Staff are responsible for preparing a review of the needs of the Health Unit following 

appropriate market analysis and providing recommendation to the Finance & Facilities Committee. 

Review Terms of Reference 

The Finance & Facilities Committee Terms of Reference sets out the parameters of how authority is 

delegated to the committee and how the committee is accountable to the Board of Health.   

It is incumbent upon the Finance & Facilities Committee to review the terms of reference at least 

biennially to ensure that components (purpose, reporting relationship, membership, chair, term of office, 

duties, frequency of meetings, agenda and minutes, bylaws and review) are still relevant to the needs of 

the committee.  



                MIDDLESEX-LONDON HEALTH UNIT 

 

                                    REPORT NO. 003-19FFC 

 

 

TO:  Chair and Members of the Finance & Facilities Committee 
 

FROM: Christopher Mackie, Medical Officer of Health/CEO 

 

DATE:  2019 February 7 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

 
HEALTH UNIT GENERAL INSURANCE POLICY RENEWAL 

 

Recommendation 
  
It is recommended that the Finance & Facilities Committee approve the renewal of the Health Unit’s 

insurance as outlined in Report No. 003-19FFC re: “Health Unit Insurance Policy Renewal.” 
 

  

Key Points 

 The Finance & Facilities Committee is responsible for periodically reviewing the Health Unit’s general 

insurance policy as part of its risk management practices. 

 The last time the policy was reviewed was in the fall of 2016, with pricing revisions in effect annually 

for 2018 and 2019. 

 General insurance premiums are expected to increase by 4.3% in 2019. 

 A comprehensive review of both general and cyber insurance, as well as a request for market quotes, 

will take place in the third quarter of 2019. 

 
 

Background 
 
The insurance policy review provides the FFC with the information necessary to consider policy changes for 

the current renewal period. The last insurance policy review was conducted in fall 2016 for the 2017 

calendar year. Insurance rates have changed modestly between 2015 ($69,737), 2016 ($69,724), 2017 

($69,657), and 2018 ($70,905). The premium excludes the cost of cyber risk insurance, which was identified 

in 2018 as a separate insurable risk for the Health Unit, as outlined in Report No. 039-18FFC. Both cyber 

and general liability insurance are currently in place, with a common renewal date of January 1, 2020. 
 

Insurance costs will increase by 4.3% (to $73,985) in 2019. Property insurance market pricing overall—and 

in particular the Lloyd’s market—has been affected by recent large catastrophic losses (hurricanes, fires, 

floods). Since property insurance pricing often subsidizes liability exposures, insurers are seeking rate 

increases across several lines. In spite of some double-digit increases being sought by insurers, Frank Cowan 

Company Ltd. was able to keep the premium increase under 5%. The liability premium is up 10% and 

medical malpractice is up 5%; however, the excess layer cost was reduced by 10%. Details of the current 

insurance policy are attached as Appendix A. 

 

To ensure that insurance rates are competitive in the marketplace, the Health Unit plans to go to market in 

the third quarter of 2019 for market quotes on both general and cyber insurance. Both categories of insurance 

will be up for renewal on January 1, 2020. 
 

This report was prepared by the Finance Team, Healthy Organization Division. 

 

 
Christopher Mackie, MD, MHSc, CCFP, FRCPC 

Medical Officer of Health/CEO 

  

https://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2018-11-01-report-039-18-ffc.pdf
http://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2019-02-07-report-003-19-ffc-appendix-a.pdf


Appendix A Report No. 003-19 FFC





































































































































                MIDDLESEX-LONDON HEALTH UNIT 

 

                                    REPORT NO. 004-19FFC 

 

 

TO:  Chair and Members of the Finance & Facilities Committee 

 

FROM: Christopher Mackie, Medical Officer of Health/CEO 

 

DATE:  2019 February 7 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

TECHNOLOGY AND INFRASTRUCTURE RESERVE FUNDS 
 
Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that the Finance & Facilities Committee recommend that the Board of Health approve 

the use of up to $1,500,000 in Technology and Infrastructure Reserve Fund monies to fund, in part, the 

cost of leasehold improvements in connection with the Health Unit’s relocation of premises to Citi Plaza. 

 

 
Key Points  

 A Technology and Infrastructure Reserve Fund was established by the Board of Health in 2014 to create 

a funding source for technology and infrastructure capital projects. 

 As of December 31, 2018, the balance available in this fund is $1,250,000. A $250,000 contribution is 

planned for 2019. 

 Given that the provincial health capital grant process is on hold, these funds will be required in 2019 to 

offset costs incurred in funding construction and renovations associated with the relocation of premises 

to Citi Plaza. 

 
 

Background 
 
A Technology and Infrastructure Reserve Fund was established by the Board of Health in May 2014 as a 

funding source for building and infrastructure capital projects, new equipment purchases, moving costs, and 

capital replacement programs. The use of this reserve is restricted to the following types of purchases: 

 Major construction, acquisition, or renovation activities as approved by the Board of Health; 

 Costs associated with major office moves; 

 Major purchases of information technology software or hardware; and 

 Vehicle or equipment replacement. 

 

Contributions to the fund were capped at $250,000 per annum commencing in 2014, and have occurred 

regularly each year since the reserve was established. As of December 31, 2018, the balance in the reserve, 

including the budgeted contribution for 2018, amounts to $1,250,000. 

 

The Health Unit is currently incurring costs pertaining to construction and renovation activities associated 

with the relocation of premises to Citi Plaza. Given that the provincial health capital grant process is on hold, 

the Technology and Infrastructure Reserve Funds will be required in 2019 to offset costs incurred in funding 

construction and renovations associated with the relocation of premises to Citi Plaza. 

 

This report was prepared by the Finance Team, Healthy Organization Division. 

 

 
Christopher Mackie, MD, MHSc, CCFP, FRCPC 

Medical Officer of Health/CEO 

 

  



Key Points 
 

 Information Technology has 10 major projects and targets to implement, manage and deliver in 2019. 

 The 5 Pillars are the guidelines upon which the IT Department categorizes and manages the different 

elements of operating an effective department within MLHU. 

                MIDDLESEX-LONDON HEALTH UNIT 

 

                                    REPORT NO. 005-19FFC 

 

 

TO:  Chair and Members of the Finance & Facilities Committee 

 

FROM: Christopher Mackie, Medical Officer of Health/CEO 

 

DATE:  2019 February 7 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY STATUS REPORT- Q1 2019 
 

Recommendation 
 

It is recommended that the Finance & Facilities Committee receive Report No. 005-19FFC re: 

“Information Technology Status Report - Q1 2019” for information.  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Background 
 

This report provides an update to Report 018-18FFC - IT Workplan.  The alignment of the Information 

Technology (“IT”) Department’s current projects and tasks are guided by the following 5 Pillars: 

 

1. Technology Infrastructure – the network, servers, end user compute devices 

2. Business Continuity – backups, restores, emergency preparedness, resiliency 

3. Technology Applications – software used to accomplish the organization’s goals 

4. Telecommunications – devices and strategy for communications, cell phones, desk phones 

5. Technology Operations – how the IT Department operates within MLHU 

 

All of the IT Department projects are tracked and recorded using Stronghold’s Professional Services 

Automation tool.  This tool assigns tasks, records time and activities and keeps all stakeholders informed of 

progress and milestones.  Hours and detail of work performed are also recorded to keep the team informed 

and able to assist through several different projects and milestones. 

 

Project List 
 

The IT department is currently working on 10 major projects for implementation in 2019.  These projects are 

a combination of strategic organizational initiatives as identified through MLHU’s Strategic Plan and those 

that are part of the required maintenance and on-going operations of the organization’s technology.  

 

The following projects are aligned to on-going technology operations. While this listing provides a brief 

description of the current projects, Appendix A provides more detailed individual status reports for each of 

the projects under the direction of the IT Department. 

  

  

http://www.healthunit.com/uploads/2019-02-07-report-005-19-ffc-appendix-a.pdf


2019 February 7 -  2  - Report No. 005-19FFC 

 

  

1. Wide Area Network Improvements  

a. Increasing bandwidth and connecting technology resources for all end users.  

2. Server Relocation 

a. Improving connectivity, security and business continuity by moving server infrastructure to 

a state-of-the-art datacenter. 

3. End User Device Replacement 

a. Replacement of dated and out of warranty computer devices in order to be able to access the 

many applications being implemented throughout the organization. 

4. SmartPhone Upgrade 

a. Replacing out of date smart phones that will no longer be supported by the manufacturer. 

5. Microsoft 365 Rollout 

a. Reduce servers, upgrade mail infrastructure and Windows operating system due to 

manufacturer end of support of Windows 7 and replace outdated mail system. 

 

The following projects are aligned to MLHU’s Strategic Plan and will require significant time and 

financial resources from the IT department in order to be achieved. Updates on these initiatives come 

forward quarterly in a separate report through the project management office (PMO). 

 

6. Enterprise Resource Planning – Finance  

a. Complete conversion to Great Plains 2018 and migration from FRx to Management 

Reporter, as well as implementation of the procurement and asset administration modules. 

7. Enterprise Resource Planning System - Human Resources 

a. Implementation of the new Human Capital Management (HCM) software system. 

8. Policy Medical Implementation 

a. Implementation of a policy management software solution. 

9. Electronic Client Record Implementation (IntraHealth) 

a. Implementation of a common ECR platform across the Health Unit. 

10. MLHU Relocation to CitiPlaza 

a. Review and implement all technological requirements for the new location. 

Next Steps 

The status of the on-going technology operations projects will be reported to the Finance and Facilities 

Committee quarterly.  

 

This report was prepared by IT Team, Healthy Organization Division. 

 

 

 

 
Christopher Mackie, MD, MHSc, CCFP, FRCPC 

Medical Officer of Health / CEO 



Project Status Report  
Appendix A – Report 005-19FFC      

Status 
Legend Proceeding as planned   Problems have surfaced,  considered manageable    Major obstacles; requires intervention   

 

 

Project: Wide Area Network Improvements    Project Number: IT1806a 

Project Sponsor: Laura Di Cesare, Director, Healthy Org Project Manager: Jeff Cameron, IT Manager 

Project Phase: Execution  Date: January 22, 2019 

Status Last Period:  Current Status:  Scope:  Schedule:  Cost:  

 

Recent Accomplishments: 

 Start.ca completing fiber installation at 201 Queens by January 25 

 Start.ca completing fiber installation at 50 King by February 8 

 All permits and construction approved 

Top Issues: 

 Provider switchover from Rogers to Start.ca 

 Connectivity between sites 

 External access and integrating new router 

Top Risks: 

 Internet connectivity for MLHU sites affected 

 Current capabilities missed or not captured in switchover 

Upcoming Key Milestones 
Targeted 

Completion Date 

On Track 

() 

Delayed 
(X) 

Key Activities for Next Period: 

 Replace Cisco ASA with WatchGuard router 

 Physical switchover of network 

 Testing and verification of connectivity across sites 1. 201 Queens Fiber install January 25   

2. 50 King Fiber install Feb 8   

3. New headend Router Feb 22   

4. Physical network switch Feb 22   

5.     

Project Changes: 

  

 
 



Project Status Report  
Appendix A – Report 005-19FFC      

Status 
Legend Proceeding as planned   Problems have surfaced,  considered manageable    Major obstacles; requires intervention   

 

 

Project: Server Relocation    Project Number: IT1806b 

Project Sponsor: Laura Di Cesare, Director, Healthy Org Project Manager: Jeff Cameron, IT Manager 

Project Phase: Planning  Date: January 22, 2019 

Status Last Period:  Current Status:  Scope:  Schedule:  Cost:  

 

Recent Accomplishments: 

 Planning and assignment of rack at Start.ca complete 

 Prepping for MLHU SAN to be transported to Start.ca 

Top Issues: 

 Shifting servers and infrastructure with no downtime 

 Permits and construction delays 

Top Risks: 

 Server and applications interruption 

 Switch over from Rogers could cause connectivity issues 

Upcoming Key Milestones 
Targeted 

Completion Date 

On Track 

() 

Delayed 
(X) 

Key Activities for Next Period: 

 Move SAN to York St 

 Move 1 server to York St 

 First server gets servers transferred 

 Shift 2nd server to York St 

 Complete server transfer to York St 

 Move third server 

 Balance and test and confirm 

1. Completion of WAN Fiber Feb 28  X 

2. Upgrade main router/WAN March 2019   

3. Install Phase 1 Servers April 2019   

4. Phase 2 Servers May 2019   

5. Phase 3 Servers June 2019   

Project Changes: 

  

 
 



Project Status Report  
Appendix A – Report 005-19FFC      

Status 
Legend Proceeding as planned   Problems have surfaced,  considered manageable    Major obstacles; requires intervention   

 

 

Project: End User Device Replacement    Project Number: IT1812a 

Project Sponsor: Laura Di Cesare, Director, Healthy Org Project Manager: Jeff Cameron, IT Manager 

Project Phase: Execution  Date: January 22, 2019 

Status Last Period:  Current Status:  Scope:  Schedule:  Cost:  

 

Recent Accomplishments: 

 Received 100 new setups including laptop and monitor 

 Verified rollout plan for 92 people 

 Rollout matches phase 1 ECR implementation 

 Rollout matches HR and Finance ERP upgrades to assist with new 
applications and software being used 

Top Issues: 

 Current OS requires replacement in 2019 

 Aging hardware deficit needed a strategic plan and implementation 

 ECR and ERP implementation requires newer hardware 

 Higher demand for compute mobility is a higher ratio than currently in use 

Top Risks: 

 Out of support OS a security risk 

 More employees require mobile devices 

 Hardware is out of warranty and aging 

Upcoming Key Milestones 
Targeted 

Completion Date 

On Track 

() 

Delayed 
(X) 

Key Activities for Next Period: 

 By March 31, determine capital expense for additional 

 Rollout reconditioned laptops to replace lowest in fleet 
 1. Rollout YA/EY Feb 15   

2. Rollout BBE/BBW Mar 8   

3. Rollout NFP Mar 22   

4. Rollout RH/SH/HE Apr 5   

5. Rollout HR/Finance Apr 5   

Project Changes: 

  

 
 



Project Status Report  
Appendix A – Report 005-19FFC      

Status 
Legend Proceeding as planned   Problems have surfaced,  considered manageable    Major obstacles; requires intervention   

 

 

Project: SmartPhone Upgrade    Project Number: IT1812b 

Project Sponsor: Laura Di Cesare, Director, Healthy Org Project Manager: Jeff Cameron, IT Manager 

Project Phase: Execution  Date: January 22, 2019 

Status Last Period:  Current Status:  Scope:  Schedule:  Cost:  

 

Recent Accomplishments: 

 Received delivery of 74 Samsung S9 

 Rollout plan approved 

Top Issues: 

 Samsung S7 is end of life March 31, 2019 

 Vast majority are eligible for hardware upgrades 

 Review new MDM platform 

  

Top Risks: 

 No patching or improvements on S7 model after March 31, 2019 

 Current S7 devices are aging, batteries failing 

 Current MDM platform requires replacement 

 Still have 60+ S7’s after rollout 

Upcoming Key Milestones 
Targeted 

Completion Date 

On Track 

() 

Delayed 
(X) 

Key Activities for Next Period: 

 Determine if any more S9’s will be purchased this year 

 Improvements on MDM usage  
1. Complete S9 enrollment Feb 1   

2. Rollout S9’s as per plan Mar 1   

3.     

4.     

5.     

Project Changes: 

  

 
 



Project Status Report  
Appendix A – Report 005-19FFC      

Status 
Legend Proceeding as planned   Problems have surfaced,  considered manageable    Major obstacles; requires intervention   

 

 

 

Project: Microsoft Office 365 Rollout    Project Number: IT1901c 

Project Sponsor: Laura Di Cesare, Director, Healthy Org Project Manager: Jeff Cameron, IT Manager 

Project Phase: Execution  Date: January 22, 2019 

Status Last Period:  Current Status:  Scope:  Schedule:  Cost:  

 

Recent Accomplishments: 

 Licensing for entire staff has been secured 

 240 x M365 F1 and 100 x M365 E3 purchased 

 Rollout plan in place to follow End User Device Replacement for E3 

 Integrated MLHU Active Directory with Azure 

Top Issues: 

 Windows 10 Enterprise licensing compliance 

 End of Microsoft Windows 7 support in March 2019 

 Current mail environment needs to be upgraded 

Top Risks: 

 Current Exchange 2010 needs to be replaced 

 Windows 7 is end of life and needs replacement – no security patches after March 

 MS Office software requires upgrade of versions 

Upcoming Key Milestones 
Targeted 

Completion Date 

On Track 

() 

Delayed 
(X) 

Key Activities for Next Period: 

 Integrate into image for new laptops 

 Testing and configuring software to AD accounts 

 Verify AD accounts and licensing 
 

1. AD Sync January 18   

2. Assign Accounts Ongoing   

3. Integrate with image Ongoing   

4.     

5.     

Project Changes: 

  

 


	2019-02-07-ffc-agenda.pdf
	2018-11-01-ffc-meeting-minutes
	2019-02-07-report-001-19-ffc
	2019-02-07-report-001-19-ffc-appendix-a
	2019-02-07-report-002-19-ffc
	2019-02-07-report-002-19-ffc-appendix-a
	2019-02-07-report-003-19-ffc
	2019-02-07-report-003-19-ffc-appendix-a
	2019-02-07-report-004-19-ffc
	2019-02-07-report-005-19-ffc
	2019-02-07-report-005-19-ffc-appendix-a



